GOVERNVENT
OF
THE DI STRI CT OF COLUMBI A

+ 4+ + + +

ZONI NG COW SSI ON

+ 4+ + + +

PUBLI C HEARI NG
+ 4+ + + +

IN THE MATTER OF

JEMAL' S LAZRIV WATER, LLC ; Case No.
: 16- 06A

Monday,
Decenber 18, 2017

Heari ng Room 220 South
441 4th Street, N W
Washi ngton, D.C.

The Public Hearing of Case No. 16-06A by the
District of Colunbia Zoning Comm ssion convened at 6:30
p.m in the Jerrily R. Kress Memorial Hearing Room at 441
4th Street, N.W, Washington, D.C , 20001, Anthony J.
Hood, Chairman, presiding.

ZONI NG COW SSI ON MEMBERS PRESENT:

ANTHONY J. HOOD, Chai rperson

ROBERT M LLER, Vice Chairperson

M CHAEL G TURNBULL, FAI A, Conmi ssioner
(ACQ)

PETER G MAY, Comm ssioner (NPS)

PETER SHAPI RO, Conmi ssi oner

OFFI CE OF ZONI NG STAFF PRESENT:

DONNA HANQUSEK, Zoni ng Speci al i st

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




OFFI CE OF PLANNI NG STAFF PRESENT:

JOEL LAWSON
ELISA VITALE

The transcript constitutes the minutes from
the Public Hearing held on December 17, 2017.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




CGCONT-EENT-S
Prelimnary Matters .
Appl i cant request for approval, update
Report of the Ofice of Planning, update
Report of the ANC, update .
Report on NCPC

Appl i cant C osing .

Adj ourn .
NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701

Www.nealrgross.com

41
43
49
61
67




A wWwN

o O

~

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

P-ROCEEDI-NGS
6:33 p. m

CHAI RVAN HOOD: (kay, good evening. W' re ready
to get started. Good evening, |adies and gentlenen. This
I's a public hearing of the Zoning Comm ssion for the District
of Colunbia. Today's date is Decenber the 18th, 2017.

My nane i s Ant hony Hood. Joining neis Vice Chair
M1l er and Comm ssioner Turnbull. For the record, | will be
aski ng Conmm ssioner Shapiro and May to read the record in
this case. W're also joined by the Ofice of Zoning staff,
Ms. Donna Hanousek, as well the O fice of Planning staff, M.
Lawson and Ms. Vitale.

This proceeding is being recorded by a court
reporter, also webcast live. Accordingly, we nust ask you
to refrain from any disruptive noise or actions in the
heari ng room including the display of any signs or objects.

Notice of today's hearing was published in the DC
Regi ster and copi es of that announcenent are avail able to ny
|l eft on the wall near the door.

The hearing will be conducted in accordance with
11 DCMR Chapter 4 as follows. Prelimnary matters of
Applicant's case, report of the Ofice of Planning, report
of other governnent agenci es, report of the ANC
organi zations and persons in support, organizations and

persons in opposition, rebuttal, and closing by the
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Appl i cant .

The followng tine restriction to be naintained
in this neeting, Applicant has up to 60 mnutes. | wll ask
you -- we've asked for 15 m nutes. And there are sone

outstandi ng i ssues with the Ofice of Planning, and ANC, and
sone of the changes. That's pretty nuch all | think we need
to do. The Commi ssion -- al so, organizations, five m nutes,
i ndi vidual s, three m nutes.

All  persons wshing to testify before the

Comm ssioners in this evening' s hearing are asked to regi ster

at the witness kiosk to nmy left and fill out two wtness
cards. The staff will be avail abl e throughout the hearing
to discuss procedural questions. Please turn off all

el ectronic devices that the sound should not disrupt these
proceedi ngs.

W1l all the individuals wishingtotestify please
rise and take the oath. Ms. Hanousek, would you please
adm ni ster the oath?

M5. HANOUSEK: Yes.

(Wtnesses sworn.)

M5. HANOUSEK: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOQOD: Ckay. Now, the Comm ssion w ||
consider any prelimnary matters. Does the staff have any
prelimnary matters?

M5. HANOUSEK: No, sir.
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CHAI RVAN HOOD: Okay. M. d asgow, we do have --
| mean, |"'msorry, sorry, Ms. Bloomng --

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: Bl oonfi el d.

CHAI RVAN HOQOD: Bl oonfield, okay, | knew | was
going toget it right. | knowit was Bl oom ng -- Bloonfield.
Ms. Bloonfield, turn your mc on. And if you can identify
yoursel f, even though |'ve already nentioned your nane.

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: Jessica Bl oonfield from Hol | and
and Kni ght.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: Okay, Ms. Bloonfield, et ne ask
a question. Do we have any expert wtnesses for this
eveni ng?

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: We did submt Kevin Sperry, to
ny right. Hs resume is at 11D but he's already been
gualified previously by the Comm ssion.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Ckay. | don't see Jeff Lee, so

we' re just doing one person?

MS. BLOOVWFI ELD: Jeff Lee is not here tonight,
right.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  So we don't usually, unless | hear
sonmething otherwise, we don't wusually undo -- well, it
depends on what it is, but in this case, for expert status
we don't wunusually wundo that, so we'll continue his
gualifications. Anything else?

MS. BLOOVFIELD: No, that's it.
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7
CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. So you nmay begi n.

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: Good eveni ng, Comm ssioners. My
name i s Jessica Bloonfield fromthe Iaw firmof Holland and
Kni ght . W are here tonight requesting approval of a
nodi fication of significance to the architectural draw ngs
approved in Zoning Comm ssion Case 16-06 under the Capitol
Gateway Overlay District requirenents. That was the 1958
zoning regulations at the tine.

The subj ect property, as you know, is at 1900 Hal f
Street with U Street to the south, T Street to the north,
Hal f and Water Street to the west, and the Anacostia River
directly to the east.

The approved project is to adaptively reuse the
existing office building by cutting out two mmjor river-
facing courtyards and providing ground-floor retail wth
residential units above. The project was approved with 200 - -
| " msorry, 426 residential units, approxi mately 24, 000 square
feet of retail use, and 300 zoni ng-conpli ant parki ng spaces.

You asked that we just hit the highlights tonight,
so | will address OP's report. They had three outstanding
coments. They were generally supportive of the project.
The first coment from them was to provide additional
information on the design flexibility to phase the
construction of one of the penthouse screen walls.

This flexibility 1is requested because, as
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currently shown, the nechani cal equi pment within that screen
wall is to be provided for a future retail tenant. W don't
know who that retail tenant will be yet. If that tenant does
not need the additional nechanical equipnent, then that
portion of the screen wall wll not need to be built at all
or could be built at a later date.

So we're asking for flexibility to build that
portion of the screen wall at a different tine, phase that
construction. And Kevin can point out where that is when he
goes through the plans.

The second comment from O fice of Planning was to
provi de further justification onthe penthouse height relief,
particularly as it relates to the 20-foot portion where an
el evator will go to the roof. And Kevin, again, can walk
t hrough sone detail ed sections of that as we go through the
pl ans.

Finally, OP requested that we provide the final
approved River Wal k design. The draw ngs that we submtted
for the River Wal k on Cct ober 13th have actual |y been updat ed
and have been approved by the O fice of Planning.

So we've included that wupdated plan in our
Power Point that we filed to the record today. You should
have it in front of you, and we'll go through that as well
i f you have any questi ons.

Regarding our work with the ANC, we've actually
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occasions for

project, in Septenber, Novenber, and in Decenber.

The ANC is generally supportive of

this

the project.

|l won't talk for Comm ssioner Mffatt, | know he's here

tonight. And they had a couple of outstanding conditions,

particularly as it related to the anmount of ground-floor

retail in the building.

W believe that the anount that

I's the right anount based on the narket.

we're providing

We're goi ng to have

very active anenity spaces, and it's conpletely consistent

with the Buzzard Point plan which was rel eased in Novenber

of this year

So with that, I'mgoing to turn it over to Pau

M Il stein, and our design teamto go through the project.

MR. M LLSTEIN: Good eveni ng, Commi ssi oners,

M| stein, Douglas Devel opnent. First,

you detect a whistle. | lost atooth today. So it's making
it a little bit challenging. W wll go through this
qgui ckly, the technical stuff.

| will say that in all of these areas we spent a

lot of time trying to elimnate them

our teamin what we could do with the stair

Paul

| et me apol ogize if

We drilled down with

pressurization

and the various things, because we try to elimnate any

changes that we possibly can. W worked hard. | think we've

come up with as mninmal an effect as possible. W'l

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701

Www.nealrgross.com

t ake




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

10

you through the technical side.

As far as the retail is concerned, again, we were
here in July of '16. W had spent a lot of tinme on this
project planning it, and we've had now a benefit of an
additional year-plus to |look at it.

We realize that we were very underanenitized for
our building. I'mstruggling herealittle bit. But anyway,
you know what | neant. Fromwhat we've | earned on our other
projects, we felt that the project couldreally struggle from
the lack of anenities, and we needed that space to nake the
building a nore successful residential project. Because
first and forenost, this is a residential project.

| would also reiterate it is a conversion of an
existing building which was not built as a residential
bui | di ng. And that provides a lot of structural and
techni cal chal | enges for cl earances, and beans, and col umms,
and drop-headers, and all these other things.

VW now cone to you a year and a coupl e of nonths
fully designed with structural, everybody's input, ready to
nove forward. And | hope that you feel that you're

confortable with it so we can get rolling. Thank you.

MR. SPERRY: Thank you, Paul. Good eveni ng,
ever ybody. M/ name is Kevin Sperry wth Antunovich
Associates. | will be bringing you through -- I'll take you
t hrough the presentation. 1'Il try and be brief and ki nd of
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hit the highlights of what has changed since 18 nont hs ago.

So as you can all see on the screen -- are you
okay with the lights, or can the lights stay on?

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Okay. | think lights are fine if
we had it closer to us, unl ess sonebody else sees
differently. Ckay, we're good.

MR SPERRY: Thank you. So on the first page, of
course, we have the project rendering which has changed very
mnimally since the first go around. W're very happy with

the way that the aesthetic of the building is reading. And

we'll hit sonme of the finer details as we go through.
So as we go through the plans, we're starting at
the bottom and going up. As one of the changes, there was

a slight reduction in parking spaces on the first three
floors -- I'msorry, on the two subterranean floors and the
ground floor that used to be parking. Very, very m nor
changes on P2 and P1.

In this floor here, the only real change was that
we used to have a little bit nore parking right in the mddle
here. W tried to make a connection a little bit safer of
an environnment for pedestrians.

And we, in nore due diligence, as you can see,
kind of inarunning theme inthis presentation, we did a | ot
of due diligence on the building and found sonme col unms t hat

we had previously thought mght be able to be renoved. W
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found out that they could not.

So the colums are right in the mddle of that
drive lane, and we had to keep them So we kind of killed
two birds with one stone, and we | ost about eight spaces on
this level, so not a big deal.

Page -- |I'm sorry, Pl1 level, this is kind of
getting up now towards the ground floor of the building
It's actually -- on sone areas this is the ground floor of
the building. Because as you'll see on the |Iower |eft hand
corner here, you have retail space.

That's only about one foot | ower than the sidewal k
at that place, because the grades kind of slope off fromthe
main entry to the building. So in this corner, that's
virtually at grade. Sane with in the back, we're actually
rai sing sone of this slab here in the back. So that's al nost
at grade too.

In this level, we |lost a couple of nore spaces,
because we wanted to differentiate between retail and
residential parking. So to do that, we had to put a few, you
know, different circulation patterns and things |like that.

W also, simlarly to below, we kind of tried to
make this connection between the residential |obby in the
back and the elevators here. So we got rid of all the
traffic going through there, reduced a few nore spaces. And

here, you know, there was probably about 10 or 15 spaces t hat
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we | ost.

Now, we had the ground floor plan. This is the
ground floor plan as it pertains to the front door at the
residential entry which is on the bottom of your plan here.

So what you'll notice is that between 18 nonths
ago and now, as we discussed in the opening, we have | ost
about 7,500 square feet of retail space. W've replaced it
with anenity space.

And as Paul sai d, Dougl as Devel opnent deci ded t hat
It was very, very inportant that the anenity space was
active, and visible to the street. It created a nice
environment onto the street and, inportantly, it created a
nice environnment for the inhabitants of the buil ding.

So a large area of this building in the front,
which was once retail space, is now first class anenity
space. And then in the rear here, kind of tucked in between
the units in the back and the anenity space in the front, we
used to have nore vehicular parking right inthis mddle area
here. That accounted for a npjority of the parking |oss.

W took that out, again, because of primarily
safety. W really wanted to have people to be able to wal k
in here, walk all the way through to the back, and make t hat
connection without having to | ook for oncomng traffic.

So that kind of explains the parking reduction.

| do want to note, it's obvious that we are still very far
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above the parking requirenent. So we think it's a pretty
good scenario at this point.

Now, as we go up the building, this is the second
floor plan. And this floor actually accounts for a majority
of the nodificationtothe FAR So in tw areas, we nodified
this floor plan. And I'll kind of explain what happened.

Here in the front on the | eft side and the right
side of the sort of central area, there used to be large
openings in the floor for retail, so that retail could have
doubl e hei ght space.

We, again, structurally we found out that that was
really difficult just because of the existing slabs and
col umms. And we wanted to, you know, create a little bit
nore -- well, first thing, I'll get into this later -- we
wanted to add | arger units. So the nunber of two and three
bedroom units actually went up by about 40.

So to do that, you kind of needed a little bit
nore area. And that was a request from the nei ghborhood.
And so we kind of filled in those two openings on the first
floor. That anpbunted to a decent ampunt of added area.

The second area is right back in here, as you can
see, ny pointer. That was a little bunp-out that we added
to the second-fl oor anenity space, because on this level in
particular, the building has a very |low ceiling height.

So a majority of the amenity space is on -- or
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sone of the anenity space is on this second |l evel wwth a very
| ow ceiling. So by bunping out and actually building a new
roof structure, we were able to give at |east sone part of
the anenity space a decently high ceiling which we thought
was kind of inportant. So that added a little bit nore to
the FAR area of the building.

So those were the two nodifications to this |evel.
And that pretty nuch accounted for nost of the FAR increase.

Here we have a typical residential plan. W're
calling it Floors 3 through 6. And here what you'll see is
there was a slight change to the building design where we
renmoved a few of the bal conies on the north and south walls.
W kept all of the balconies that were facing the water.
Because we thought that those were very, very inportant to
those units and to kind of the feeling of the building.

We renoved bal coni es where really they were being
incredibly detrinmental to the unit |ayout. And | have a
coupl e of exanples of that on the foll ow ng pages.

But, you know, when you add the bal cony, it sort
of pushes you back fromthe existing slab of the building.
So there's a little bit less natural light that conmes into
the usabl e space of the unit. And it just -- it creates
areas where it was quite awkward for the unit |ayout.

And agai n, because of the existing nature of this

building, it's very sort of difficult to | ocate sone openi ngs
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I n the sl ab where you need to. So we're kind of held hostage
to just the colum grid and the 20-foot colum grid of this
exi sting building.

So two unit layouts that kind of explain the
difference before and after with the bal cony reduction, so
on the | eft side was before. That includes the balcony. And
you can see, as you walk into the unit, in this case it's
actually the access to the balcony that's nobst hanperi ng.

When you get into the |living space here, you ki nd
of have to have a clear area so that you can access the
bal cony. And that sort of pushes your living area up nore,
it really squeezes it in. And it's just not a very usable

or efficient living space |ayout.

So once we take away that balcony, that |ust
really opens up that living space nuch, nuch better. You
have nore roomto put your furniture, you know, nore areas

that you can sit, and the light can cone in. It's less --
there's | ess shadows, and nore natural light, and things |ike
that, not to nention that the bedroom beconmes a very, you

know, sort of feasible rectangular shape as opposed to the
L-shape that it was before.

In this situation, excuse ne, it's even nore kind
of striking, the difference where on the left side you have
the existing layout with the bal cony. Now, because of that

sort of L-shape living space at the wi ndow, we had to push
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our kitchen back up to what was basically the vestibule. So
you walk into the unit, and you have the kitchen in the
vesti bul e, because it couldn't fit next to the w ndow here.

So that was just not as desirable as what it is
now whi ch you can see on the right side where the kitchen was
now able to fit closer to the window. Because we got rid of
t hat bal cony. And you have a very nice and reqular, |arge,
rectangular living/dining/kitchen area and in a nore

efficient |ayout.

So as we get to the roof, | wll go through this
sheet fairly quickly, and then | have a sumary of the
hei ghts after this. But essentially, we are currently

reusi ng four elevators on sort of the northern bank of the

bui | di ng.

A lot of these changes canme about by wanting to
reuse as nuch of the building as we could. It's an existing
buil ding, the elevators are actually -- we found out they're

in better condition than we thought. They have probably
upwards of 20 years left intheir livable life span. And we
did not realize that before. So this was a slight change.
So part of this is the elevators thenselves. The
cabs are the cabs, and we can do a refreshing of the interior
of the cabs. But we don't want to change the structural
openings in the slab, again, based on the structure.

Once you start to nodify any openings in slab, it
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becones incredibly costly and very difficult to coordinate
because of the existing building.

You cone out of the elevator and you have a nice

rooftop I ounge here. W did slightly -- | have one mnute
left -- we slightly nodified our nechanical system
Actually, no, we totally overhauled it. It used to be
existing cooling towers, and now we have VRF units. So

essentially, those had to ki nd of be redi stributed across the
roof because of the different change in systens.

This area here to the north of the | ounge i s what
Jessica was referring to. That whole rectangle is for the
retail use which might or mght not happen in the future.
So that whole area won't get built on day one. It'Il get
built in the future when the retail comes through.

And so here we have a little col or-coded di agram
of the roof heights, the penthouse heights. And it does get
alittle confusing. W're trying to keep it as sinple as we
can.

This purple area here is where the existing
el evator is popping up. And that's the one elevator that's
being nodified to access the penthouse |evel. Bef or e,
actual ly none of the el evators accessed t he pent house | evel .
They went to the highest, you know, |iveable |level of the
buil ding. But they didn't access the penthouse.

Sotoretrofit that el evator, because it's al ready
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i n place, you need to add, you know, there's safety issues,
there's clearance issues. So we have to pop that up about
six feet fromwhere it was originally designed.

The vyellow area is the existing slab of the
pent house. That's the existing penthouse structure. And we
do want to reuse as nmuch of that as we can. And there's al so

an existing stair located in here right in that part right

t here.

And that is a little bit higher than it was
before, three and a half feet higher, because before we had
been ripping down the entire penthouse structure. Nowwe're
trying to retain as nuch of it as we can. So it just is

where it is today.

The orange down below that is new structure. So
that area is new. That's |ivable penthouse space. And then
all the way out here is exterior mechanical space without a
roof. So that's just screened.

W're trying to mnimze the nunber of heights,
so we nmatched that screen with the new penthouse structure
here. And so on the left side, that's the sane as it al ways
was. And thento the areato the right, that's actually | ess
by three and a half feet than it was previously. That's a
benefit of the new VRF system

This light orange area here is all new It's a

new screen wall. W didn't have any screen wall before where
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we probably should have. But now we tied it in with the
existing stairs so, again, back to penthouse regul ations,
It's one continuous penthouse.

And the two red volunes are the existing stairs
which are actually new pop-ups to the roof. And those are
actually a foot and a half shorter than they were last tine
we cane to review the plans. So there's a couple of things
goi ng up, a couple of things going down. But we're trying
to sinplify it across the board as nuch as we can.

Here is the new site plan diagram which was
approved. And this is the viewfromthe front corner at the
retail and the front entrance.

M5.  BLOOWFI ELD: That concludes our direct
presentation. And we're happy to answer any questi ons.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Okay, thanks. Well, let's see if
we have any questions or comrents up here. Did they answer
all our questions for us?

COWMWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Yes, | see a | ot of eyes
| ooking in ny direction.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Yes, it's noving along to my right
t oni ght .

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Well, thank you for your
presentation. Let ne go back to the penthouse right away.
There's two penthouses which you say are now |ower, but

t hey' ve gone significantly wi der, and you' ve added onto t hem

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

21
Coul d you explain what's going on?

MR, SPERRY: So we added onto them sort of into
the courtyards. And the reason for that is the building
right now is sort of cut. Because we have cut into the
bui I ding for these two courtyards. So that's cut at the edge
of the col umms.

Now, the opening in the slab for the stair was
al ways there. And you would inmagine that there used to be
a slab in this courtyard area, |ike for instance, right in
her e.

(OFf mic comments.)

MR, SPERRY: So this used to all be existing slab
right in here. The stair has two colums at the corners.
Now, those col umms were designed to have an opening to one
side and a slab to the other side. So it's kind of, I|ike,
of fset seal within that concrete col um.

If you are to cut the exterior of that stair in
line with the rest of that face, that will really create
structural problens on those colums. It'll basically throw
t hem out of bal ance, because it wasn't designed that way.

So what we needed to do was keep four feet of
structure around each of those colums. That's on this
corner of the stair and this corner of the stair. So there's
essentially the colum that cones down, then there's a four-

foot platformaround it so that that colum can stay going
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straight. |If you didn't have that platform it would kind
of , you know, bend out of balance. So that's essentially --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: And frankly, you didn't
know t hat when you first --

MR SPERRY: That's correct. Yes, there was a |l ot
of structural reconnai ssance that was done in the |ast 18
nonths. And that's one of the mmjor things that we found
out .

So that's what requires the sort of bunp-out at
the two corners of the stair. And then that's essentially
why we wanted to fit in this stair pressurization shaft in
t he area which we don't need to have that slab kind of right
in the mddle of those two bunp-outs.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: What about the w dth?
You've got a | ot of space around the stair now that --

MR. SPERRY: Essentially, the width on the two
sides of the stair is not needed. But because it is needed
at the corners, we wanted to just clean up that volune. It's
only that wide on the top |evel.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Wiy is it -- oh, okay.

MR, SPERRY: You can see, if | go down here --

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: But | don't see your --
where are the colums? Could you go back there to that plan
you were show ng?

MR. SPERRY: Sur e.
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(OFfFf mic comments.)

MR. SPERRY: There you go. On that level right
there, you could see the columms right in the corner of that
red stair.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Okay. And what's all that
gray space around it then? That's going to be --

MR SPERRY: So right inthe mddle is the stair
pressurization shaft. And above and below it is those
platfornms. They're just slabs that we can't break through.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. Al right. GCkay.
You said you only lost a few balconies. But it |ooks |ike

you | ost about half your bal conies.

MR. SPERRY: Yes, it could have been half. e
wanted to keep the bal conies where, like | said, where we
t hought they were the nost useful.

COWM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Yes.

MR. SPERRY: A |lot of the bal conies were facing
intothe interior of the courtyards. And, you know, it's not

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  And you still have them
on the front of the building?

MR. SPERRY: So the ones on the west side of the
building on the front we retained. All of the -- and |
shoul d have nentioned that before.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Not on the back, but al
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t he ones on the sides --

MR SPERRY: Yes. On the north facade, and the
south facade, and the courtyard facades we renoved.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: You're real ly stabbing the
Vice Chair, you know, you're really hurting him But I'm
sure he'll talk about that hinself.

MR, SPERRY: Yes. And, you know, we did try, we
did try and keep them But when you | ook at the quality of

the units before and after, we thought that, you know, it's

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: No, | agree. The units
|l ook a |ot better. It's a shame that we're losing the
bal conies. | think that adds a lot to the site. And this
building in particular, | think, is going to mss that.

And the retail, | understand, M. MIIstein, you
t al ked about you | ost 7,000 square feet. | know you're about
1,000 square feet above what's required but, you know, the
ANC, |I'msure, wll talk about it.

MR. SPERRY: Yes.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: But that was one of the
big things that they were hoping for, was a lot nore retail.

MR. M LLSTEIN: And | would share that hope.
Retail is very inportant to the success of the building and
the quality of life living in this building. But | wll

tell you that everything can't be on a every site. W can't
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fix every problemof every issue. And it has to be done with
quality.

And inthis particular site, it really didn't |end
itself to a large retail conponent. So the difference
bet ween 20, 000, or 29,000, and 16, 000, whatever the nunbers
are, again, you get into quality versus quantity.

Wiere we felt the balance, there's going to be a
| ot of retail wapped around us on this one. W don't have
tocarry theretail load. Usually we are carrying the retail
| oad. And nobody is nore creative or aggressive wth
creating retail environnents where they don't even exist.
That's how we were raised.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Yes.

MR. MLLSTEIN: But at the sane tine, we need to
have anenities, we need to have co-working space in the
buil ding. W found a | ot of people are now working fromthe
buil di ng. And they need |l arge areas to drop their | aptop and
do their thing.

And we were never going to be the synergy of the
nei ghborhood for retail. Even at 29,000 feet, it's a
spattering. It's a spattering either way, right. So we felt
much nore inportant to focus on really quality residenti al
and work spaces within the building and just still have that
spattering. But we're not the answer for that part.

You know, that's going to come with the soccer
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stadi um and devel opnent around it, which it is a critical
conponent. You nust have it. But again, this was a quality
versus quantity. And we really had to err on the side of a
quality residential building to bring the right residents
down and use the retail that we had avail abl e.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Okay. But what kind of
retail do you see going in here.

MR MLLSTEIN. | think it will be small er users,
restaurants for sure, probably in the 3,500 square foot
range. You know, the Carm ne's that we have on 7th Street
at 18,000 feet, that's not what's happeni ng.

Now we're seeing much nore chef-driven. W' re
fortunate to have a really nice entourage of sone real |y good
chef's in the nei ghborhood, very simlar to what we did in
vy City with Puerta Verde. That's about 3,500 feet with a
| ocal restaurant operator.

This isn't chains. This is not the vision for
that. | think you will see smaller |ocal type businesses.
|'"d like to see nore dry goods, quite frankly, but they're
challenging today in today's retail market. | think we're
going to see nore food and beverage options and hopefully
some unique stuff that wants to be down that way. That's
ki nd of the thought there.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Ckay.

MR. MLLSTEIN. Not the big box retailers along
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t hose I|i nes.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. M LLSTEIN: Sure.

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: In the new FAR
cal cul ati on, does that account for the bal conies that you' ve
now i ncorporated into the plan? Oiginally, the bal conies
were not included in your FAR count. But now that you've
I ncl uded those into the floor plan, are they nowincluded in
t he overall FAR?

MR. SPERRY: Yes, they are.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: They are?

MR, SPERRY: Yes.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. | guess the only
ot her question, | guess you're asking for additional relief
and |'m-- to provide a range in the residential dwelling of
plus or mnus ten percent fromwhat's showmn. And | guess |
don't mnd the plus, but | guess the m nus woul d bother ne
a bit. So I'mjust concerned about what that does. And |
t hi nk the ANC mi ght have some concern about the | oss of nore
residential units.

MR. M LLSTEIN. So, sir, | understand your concern
there. W're flexible. That's one thing that we'll never
argue about. W try to nmmintain a bal ance.

Again, if you notice, we had a dramatic increase

in two and three bedroomunits froma year ago. And that's
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sonething that wasn't the trend at the tinme, and you
certainly see it nore than anybody.

We're trying to encourage the famlies to stay in
the city long term W think it's critical. So we want to
provi de good options for the nmulti-bedroomunits. So agai n,
that created a pretty substantial shift in the units.

We're wei ghing construction docunents now, so |
don't anticipate any large shifts. W don't, you know, if
you're unconfortable with the ten percent it seened, we'd
| i ke to not have to cone back if things change a little bit.
It's all about confort level. If we want to nake it a five
percent, we're fine. W're flexible on that point.

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: Ckay. "1l let ny
col l eagues weigh in on that too. | guess the only other

thing is that you talk about final design of the retail

frontages. And I'mjust -- what | don't want to see, | nean,
you're showing a design for the front now, so |I'm just
concerned. | nean, | don't mnd sonme mnor things.

MR MLLSTEIN. | think | can help you with that

one. The intent there, and we can maybe say it a little
better, is right now you'll see there's basically two
entrances dedicated to the retail, and they have i nset doors.
Because if you're a restaurant, you' re not swi nging out into
t he public space and hitting sonebody with a door.

If we end up doing four or five smaller type

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

29

users, which | actually think we wll, we're going to need
to nodify the facade to accommopdate inset doors for those

small er users. So we're not |ooking to change the height,

the materials, the last proportions. It's just we may need
to add sone entrances. | actually am pretty sure we wll.
Because - -

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  That was nmy concern. |
mean, if you're tal king doors and entrances --

(Si mul t aneous speaki ng.)

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: | really don't care about
t hat .

MR. M LLSTEIN. That was our intention, yes, sir.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay, all right. Al
right, M. Chair, those are ny questions.

CHAI RVAN HOQOD: Thank you, M. Turnbull. Vi ce
Chai r?

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Thank you, M. Chairman. And
t hank you for your presentation. So on the retail, you're
going to have 16,500 square feet of retail still --

MR. M LLSTEIN: Yes.

VICE CHAIR M LLER -- instead of the 24,000
square feet --

MR. M LLSTEIN: Yes.

VICE CHAIR M LLER -- that originally was
pr oposed.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

30
MR. M LLSTEI N: Yes.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. And you just described what
kind of retail you're hoping to get. Wat is the retail --
what's the square footage of the retail on the roof? And
what's -- there's sone reservation of space on the --

M5. BLOOWFI ELD:  The pent house habitabl e space i s
just anmenity space for the building residents. It's not
retail.

MR MLLSTEIN. The reserve space is for retai
mechani cal. You are correct.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Retail nechani cal.

MR. M LLSTEIN: W anticipate shafts and
equi pnrent. W don't know, again, if it's four restaurants
or two, when they change, so we're just reserving an area for

t heir equi pnent.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: | see, okay. And on the
bal coni es, Conmi ssioner Turnbull is right that | always | ove
seei ng bal conies on residential buildings. But | think
you' ve made a fairly good case as to how the units will be
| ai d out better, and nore light will cone in. O herw se,

assune you coul d desi gn the bal cony door to let the light in.

And the reduction in the residential to create --
and the nunber of units of residential to create |arger two
and three bedroom units | think is comendabl e. I think

that's a great -- that's a good public benefit that we want
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to see in southwest and all across the city. And we are
seeing that increasingly which is a good thing.

So the ANC i s concerned about the retail and the
reduction in retail. And we'll hear from them soon. So
you're going to have this fitness, nostly it's the fitness
center, yoga, and then you have -- | guess you have sone
ot her | ounge space for the tenants of the building.

But is it possible that the fitness center, yoga,
woul d be operated by a fitness center that would be open to
the public as well, and you would have signage, and woul d
serve the greater nei ghborhood?

MR. M LLSTEIN: | would say probably not. And
here's why. W have found, in fact, our nost recent buil ding
is the Hecht Conmpany Warehouse in lvy City. W did a deal
with Planet Fitness where we did 16,000 square feet of two-
story retail, and they built a beautiful health facility.

W got a lot of issues from our residents that
some of themreally just don't want to be in a large public
athletic facility. They want a small, quiet environnment
within the building. So we ended up going back and buil di ng
a 3,000 foot athletic facility within the Hecht Buil ding as
an anenity to the residents.

And by the way, their |eases come with a free
menbership to Planet Fitness. That was negotiated in the

deal . So it wasn't a question of nobney, it's just they
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wanted a nore intimte environnent.

So | anticipate, again, this is a large building,
it's 400-plus wunits, that we would have sone facility
avail able for residents' private. | do. That's not to say
we woul dn't al so do another fitness type deal in the retai
space. That could certainly happen, again, |ike Hecht's.
But | definitely want to see a private one for the buil ding.
We think we need it.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Ckay. | appreciate that
expl anati on.

So the ANC requested that you stand by -- at the
top of Page 2 of their -- actually, | haven't | ooked at their
testinmony this evening -- but at the top of Page 2 of their
Decenber 12th letter they ask that you stand by, the
Applicant stand by its previous conmtnent to provide the
fol |l owi ng, nunber one, ten units of affordable housinginthe
bui |l di ng set aside for ten years to housing earning up to 60
percent of area inmmediate incone, two, a 3,200 square foot
dog park on the property to the north of the building, three,
continue to work with ANC 6D to establish an appropriate
constructi on nmanagenent plan as the project noves forward,
and four, add back to the building's ground floor the
originally planned space devoted to retail

So you've addressed the retail that you're --

while you're not willing to add that back. But can you j ust
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address the other three points that are nade in that
particul ar paragraph, the affordabl e housing, the dog park,
and the construction managenent plan?

MR M LLSTEI N: Well, we're batting 750. We' |
agree to three of the four, so we think we're doing pretty
wel | .

VICE CHAIR M LLER Yes. And the ten units of 60
percent AM affordabl e housing for ten years, that was i n our
original zoning order or that was in sone other conmtnent
that you nade to the --

MR. M LLSTEIN: That's correct. W made a
commtnment -- it was discussed at the tine, | believe, and
Counsel can clear ne up as usual, that you're really nore of
a design program But we proffered it at our original
hearing, and we will stand by it.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Ri ght.

MR. MLLSTEIN. And we --

VICE CHAIR MLLER And | realize that. And |
think that inclusionary zoning doesn't necessarily apply
currently to conversions of office to residential, but |
think we've asked the Ofice of Planning to revisit that
i ssue and maybe, for the future, make it apply so that would
be nore than a ten-year conmtnent.

M5. BLOOVFIELD: If | may just, to clarify for

the record, that's correct that 1Z does not apply to this
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building. And in the prior Zoning Conm ssion order, at the
hearing we said yes, we'd like to do ten units of affordable
housi ng for ten years at 60 percent of the AM.

The order specifically notes in a couple of
| ocations that that was not included as a condition of the
order, even though the Applicant has offered to do it,
because it's not within the purview of the design review
process.

VICE CHAIR M LLER Ri ght, okay. And the
occupi abl e pent house space on the roof, that doesn't trigger
any --

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: No. It's aresidential building.
So it would not trigger a contribution to the Housing Trust
Fund.

VICE CHAIR MLLER  And it doesn't trigger any
square footage requirenent at a | ower 50 percent AM | evel ?

M5S. BLOOVFI ELD: It does not, because they're not
units. It's not residential units. |It's habitable space.
It's communal rooftop anenity space. So if it was units, it
woul d trigger a 50 percent AM requirenent in the building.
But sinceit's not either units or a non-residential building
wi th penthouse habitable space, it does not trigger either
one of them

VICE CHAIR M LLER: kay. | appreciate that

clarification then. And | appreciate that you are batting
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750. But we'll see how happy the ANCis. So thank you very
much. | appreciate it.

CHAI RVAN HOQOD: So, M. MIllstein, on the four
outstanding i ssues with the ANC, the only one is the retail.
It's still the sane.

MR MLLSTEIN Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay. | wll tell you that | have
used Hecht's Warehouse nodel in sone other cases in front of
the city. You all may not know that, but | think Hecht's
War ehouse is fabul ous. And it works, and it's in ny
nei ghborhood. [I'mjust sorry to hear that the residents of
Hecht's Warehouse don't want to work out with ne at Pl anet
Fi t ness.

(Laughter.)

CHAI RMVAN HOOD: So | do know that -- |'ve heard
alot of themnention about the health facility that you have
for themto work out in the Warehouse. And they say it is
dynanite. Maybe one of these days I'Il be able to peek
t hrough the door and look at it while I'"'min the area.

But when you tal ked about the retail, the service
retail over at Hecht's Warehouse i s working, fromwhat | see.
| can't wait for the other places to -- and | noticed, not
by the Hecht's Warehouse but I'mtrying to, as | hear from
M. Mffatt tonight, 1'lIl be able to articulate sonme of the

things that |'ve seen.
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| know di fferent nei ghborhoods require different
things. And like you nentioned, that you all are not the
sole person there in that area for the Hecht's Warehouse.
But we're going to make sure that they -- | think they get
the retail they need across the board, and that we get
everything that we need.

And this is kind of helping to continue to keep
nmoving in the right direction, | think, for that area. But
If it's patterned after the Hecht's Warehouse, | cantell you
that's actually -- and like | said, |I'vereferred it to sone
other areas in the city since |I've been -- that is actually
wor ki ng. |'ve been braggi ng on Hecht's Warehouse. So that
i s the nodel.

So |I've al so been putting the plug in, | hope you
all continue to do what you're doing. Because it's actually
wor ki ng. The residents of Ward 5 appreciate it. And | see
a lot of folks that don't live in the area over there which
we appreciate also. So | think you' re doing a good job with
that. And | hope the sanme thing happens here.

MR. M LLSTEIN: Yes.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  You want to comment ?

MR. M LLSTEIN. And thank you for the kind words.
The fundanental difference is Hecht's Warehouse is a couple
hundred thousand-plus square feet and nore coming. W're

trying to establish a really strong retail core there.
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Again, every project is different, and you know
that we try not to apply the sane standards across t he board.
We | ook at every one of ours as a custom project that we
really need to build.

We are not institutional, we can't nake a m st ake,
right. We've got about a thousand of our devel opnents,
either we're batting 750 with the ANC, right. These are big
conmm t ment s.

And we feel that they're different as far as a
retail sense of place. And this will have a sense of place
with the retail wapped around it on the other devel opnents.
And we think we've got the right balance here. But this wll
| eave us to develop a quality residential building.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Well, | know M. Litsky who's ANC
and M. Moffatt. They work very hard. But | guess ny
comrents were -- because | was a little skeptical at first
wi th Hecht's Warehouse. But sonetines, | guess, |'ve | earned
that | have to give things a chance.

And then | think, as you nentioned, because when
| wal ked through Hecht's Warehouse -- and | don't want to
make t hi s about Hecht's Warehouse, but the uni queness of it,
when | wal ked through it, | said okay. And if you haven't
been in there, if you know sonebody in there, go through and
j ust wat ch.

| look at the walls. | said, oh, they didn't even
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finish this. They cleaned it up, but they didn't finish.

| think it was very unique, in that case.

But et ne get back to this case. | know we went
through the brick. And I know it was kind of |ight brick,
and | see the brick back there. | don't knowif -- | don't
know who asked for it. But | see the light -- are there two
shades of the black brick? They're two shades of it, right.
You have |ight --

MR SPERRY: Yes, there's a light brick, and
there's a dark brick. And you can see the -- | guess it's
better to see the first rendering on the front page. There's
a long expanse of that brick material on the back facade
agai nst the water.

So those two brick materials were intended to
break that up a little bit and have a sort of a rhythm on
that facade so it's not just one continuous col or through the
whol e ti ne.

The other -- yes, the other note about the brick
is that we're doing a Norman brick. So it's a |longer brick,
very elegant. And it's going to be a really, really nice

detail to that first and second floor of the building.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. |'mtrying -- can you point
to me where it is here? | can't --

MR, SPERRY: So on the first page here, you can
kind of see on the corner it's the darker color. And then
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for two bays it switches to the lighter. And then for two
bays it switches back to the darker, lighter, and then one
bay is darker.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: COkay, | see it. | seeit. Yes,
what is this material up here? Let's go up top. The
material is running, like, the black material is going

through where the glass is, all the glass. What is the

material? | don't see that back here.

MR. SPERRY: So that is actually -- the skin is
a netal skin for the magjority of the residential tower. It's
a deep blue color. And that's actually -- that should be
back there. So that is kind of what's creating the grid.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: OCh, | seeit. It's a small piece.

MR. SPERRY: Yes, that's right.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. | was | ooking for somet hi ng
bi g, you know. GCkay. Al right. Al right, |I seeit. Al
right. | was just wondering, because | was thinking that
couldn't be brick. But | see it over there now

MR. SPERRY: Right. Yeah, the brick is only on
those first two | evels of the building.
CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. Al right. And | think

you' ve expl ained all the i ssues about the penthouse, and how

that's going to work, and how you -- what you discovered.
| think that's been discussed. So I'll hear what the Ofice
of Planning has to say as well. Are there any other issues
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that are outstanding or did we cover all of thenf? | think
we did.

MR, SPERRY: | think so.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: All right. So we won't bel abor
the point. Any nore followup, M. Turnbull?

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Yes. | just have one nore

gquestion for M. Sperry. On the Norman brick, are you
pl anning to do anything with the joints? You know, a | ot of
times the horizontal joints are accented in one color. Are
you doi ng anything tricky?

MR, SPERRY: So we're actually planning on doing
a stacked bond pattern for the Norman brick which you
typically don't actually see on a Norman brick. So we're
trying to differentiate it even a little bit nore.

COWMWM SSI ONER TURNBULL: ©Ch, okay. But you're not

changi ng col ors of joints or anything?

MR. SPERRY: No. It's all a continuous joint
col or.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay. Al right, thank
you.

MR. MLLSTEIN. Can we have flexibility on that?

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Coul d you have flexibility
on that?

MR. M LLSTEI N On the grout color, the nortar
col or?
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(Si nmul t aneous speaki ng)

MR M LLSTEI N Personally, | think that the
darker brick should have a darker nortar and the |ighter
brick should have a lighter nortar to further differentiate
t he bays.

MR.  SPERRY: |  thought you neant that the
hori zontal joints would be different than the vertical
j oints.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Right. That's what | was
getting at.

MR. SPERRY: Right. | agree with Paul. | nean,
first of all, there should be alittle bit of variance on the
-- when you have the darker brick, we mght entertain a
darker nortar. \Wen you have the lighter brick, we would
entertain a lighter nortar. But within that field, | do
think the design right now is that it'll be a consistent
color of nortar.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: Ckay, that's fine.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  Any ot her questions or conments
up here? Does the ANC have any cross or questions? Ckay,
we don't have any cross. Ckay, let's go to the Ofice of
Pl anning and -- oh, do we have a -- okay, let's go to the
O fice of Planning.

MS. VI TALE: Good evening, M. Chair, nenbers of

the Conmission, Elisa Vitale, with the Ofice of Planning.
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OP will rest on the record in support of the requested
nodi fication of significance.

We appreciate the Applicant's presentation this
evening and the responses with respect to the i ssues that OP
identified inits report. And we believe our questions and
| ssues have been addressed, so this conpletes ny report. And
' m happy to answer any questions. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN HOCD: Ckay, thank you, Ms. Vitale. Any
gquestions or coments up here? And again, as you stated, all
of your issues have been addressed and the conversationis --

MS. VITALE: Yes, that's correct.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay, great. Has the Applicant
any questions or coments?

(No audi bl e response)

CHAI RMAN  HOCD: Ckay. Does the Applicant have
any, Ms. Bloonfield?

M5. BLOOVFI ELD: No, thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOCOD: Ckay. Thank you very nuch, M.
Vitale. Let's goto the ANC report. M. Mffatt? 1| think
t here's enough roomfor --

(OFf the record comments)

CHAI RMAN  HOOD: Soneti nmes when things are not
going well, | have to ask the Applicant to step back.

MR, MOFFATT: Are you ready?

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Waiting on you.
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MR MOFFATT: Good evening, Chairman Hood, and

di stinguished nenbers of the Zoning Conm ssion of the
District of Colunbia. And good evening to the fellow
citizens of the District of Col unbia.

My nane is Roger Mffatt. And | serve as
Comm ssioner for the Single Mnber D strict 6D 05, the
| ocation of this proposed developnent. | amhere tonight to
speak on behal f of ANC 6D.

Due to the receipt of the information in end
drawi ngs and dribbles , the ANC submtted two reports with
three votes to the Zoni ng Comm ssion. For that reason, |
will attenpt, through testinony and answering any questions
that you may have, to clarify any position of ANC 6D on this
i ssue that mght not have been nade clear in the second
subm ssi on.

At its Septenber 11 neeting, the ANC voted in
support of the Applicant's requested nodification to approve
pl ans, including changes to facade, and pent houses, as well
as a reduction of the number of units from427, or 26 as she
stated earlier, | believe, to 415 as was stated in the
updat ed report.

ANC 6D Commissioners did not have the
architectural draw ngs that were submtted on 10/13/2017,
t hose were Exhibits 8A-1 and 8A-2 of this case, nor were we

told until the latter part of October that this nodification
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would include a mmjor reduction in an already deficient
anount of space devoted to retail.

A second vote was taken relating to the subject
at an ANC neeting on Novenber 13th. That vote was rescinded
in a third vote at the ANC neeting on Decenber 11th, 2017.
The vote of the Decenber 11 al so included affirmation of the
vote of Septenber 11th, 2017, all conditional on severa
items agreed to by the Applicant in the report. Al so
included in the list of the conditions is the restoration of
the retail space on the ground floor to which the Applicant
has not agreed.

The ANC believes that the proposed design
i nappropriately uses space on the ground floor for tenant
anenities that do not activate the streets or provide
services or goods, thereby not neeting criteria of the
Capitol Gateway Overlay, Paragraph 1600.2, nor the Buzzard
Poi nt vision framework and design revi ews.

Criteria of the Gateway Overlay, 16.2, Item B,
states that the purposes of the CG Overlay District are to
encourage a variety of support and visitor related uses such
as retail, service, entertainment, cultural, and hotel or inn
uses.

Wth the 16,542 square feet of retail in the
devel opnment, in a devel opnent of 468, 647 square feet, a nere

3.5 percent is slated for retail with nearly a third of that
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being in the basenent or Pl |evel.

The Buzzard Point vision framework and design
reviews, as recently released by the DC Zoning -- |I'msorry,
DC O fice of Planning, set up guidelines of 0.4 FAR devoted
to ground floor retail and Buzzard Point devel opnent. At
16, 542 square feet, retail constitutes 0.21 FAR

In addition, residential anenities will not serve
to activate the area on Water, Half, and T Streets. Further,
It will not provide nmuch needed servi ces and goods of vari ous
kinds for Buzzard Point, and it sets a bad precedent for
t hose who foll ow

ANC 6D has not asked the Applicant to neet the new
gui del i nes, because we had al ready voted in support of the
previ ous anmount of retail space before those were issued.
However, the ANC i s adamant concerni ng the re-establishnent
of the retail space on the ground floor. And that is why it
Is key to our support.

As evi denced by previous votes on this natter, we
are i npressed with nuch of this project. But we believe that
ensuring availability of adequate goods and services for
Buzzard Point residents and visitors is paranount.
Consequently, we cannot fully support this proposed design
while it contains such dearth of retail space.

Thank you for allowi ng ne to speak at this hearing

on behal f of ANC 6D. And if you have any further questions,
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Il wll try to entertain themor answer them

CHAI RMVAN  HOQOD: Ckay. Thank you, Conm ssi oner
Moffatt. Let's see if we have any followup questions up
her e.

Let ne ask, help nme understand the retail. I
think you heard, and |I'm sure you probably have heard it
before, tonight was ny first tinme hearing it, you heard from
M. MIllstein the rationale. What is -- give ne your
t houghts on that.

MR MOFFATT: Well, we've heard several different
reasons why. Part of the reasoning is that being one of the
first there, it's hard to get the retail, because you don't

have the people to support it. And if that continues to be

a reason for not building retail, then we won't have any.
Because there's not a huge anmount of space -- of area that
can be used for retail in the whole of Buzzard Point.

So we've sent out letters to prospective

devel opers, and that's on record with the Zoning Conm ssi on
here too, detailing itens that we would like to see in any
devel opnent that's brought to us.

What really disappointed us about this was the
fact that it was put out there at a snmall er anmount than what
OP i s saying should cone in now. And then once that had cone
out, they're com ng back and wanting to | ower the anmount to

even the snall er anount.
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So we just believe that sonewhere we have to take

a stand onit. Because we think it also -- it's not just the
design of this one building, it's the design of all of
Buzzard Point that cones into view, cones into play, rather.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So in his discussion about it --
and | know I'm -- | guess |I'm not pro or con. ['"'m just
trying to talk this thing through. Because | know, and |ike

he said, Hecht's -- | Kkeep going to Hecht's Wirehouse
because | think it just worked. And so far it's working out
just fine.

But when | |look at what's going on at Hecht's

War ehouse and the nodel that's happening there, even though

| know it wouldn't be an identical nodel that's happening

here -- and I'mnot trying to defend this one here, |I'mjust

trying to see if we're naking sure we get the right mx for

the retail that the conmunity wants.

But one of the things that was nentioned at ot her

there's sone other retai

that's probably going to cone

after this. |Is that been nentioned to the ANC? And | know

you all have sent letters out, as you just stated.

But what -- because if our nopdel behind Hecht's,

and | know what M. MIllstein said, if our npdel behind

Hecht's -- and Hecht's is,

from my standpoint,

from ny

i ndi vi dual

(202) 234-4433

knowl edge of what's goi ng on,

The type of retailers over
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and | knowthis is not what you all are | ooking for now, it's

not |ike the Costcos or, well, everyone would be a Costco
now, of that type of retail, so the retailer is going there,
or that is happening at Hecht's, is actually, | think,
wor Ki ng.

And I'"'mkind of -- I"'mtrying to get to where you

all are and kind of what you all are trying to enlist going
tothis area in the concern of the reducing the retail. [|I'm
trying to get there. Can you help ne get there?

MR MOFFATT: Well, | don't -- our reasoning is
that if we keep | etti ng peopl e, devel opers, build wi thout the
requisite retail, then you won't have enough there. There's
very little space down there already, and there's supposed
to be 6,000 units. And that's residential only in that snal
ar ea.

And then that doesn't account for all -- there
have to be all kinds of services for people, nedical, if
there's a fire, the nearest fire departnment is probably
either Capitol Hi Il or on E Street. And so it takes a while
to get that done, to get services down there.

So sone things will have to find a place in there.
|"'m not asking themto take it on. |'mjust asking that a
precedent not be set where we're lowering it way below it.
| f we put guidelines out there, then they need to be kept.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Yes.
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MR, MOFFATT: And as | said, we were not trying

to keep themto a guideline here, exactly. W just don't
want themto reduce it bel ow what they had said previously.

We had suggested, since there was a possibility,
that anmenities could be noved to the second fl oor. That
probably would reduce your unit count, but we would still
rat her have activation with that ground | evel and services
avai l abl e, services and goods available to the people who
live there and in the other area, in the other precedents
that's around.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. All right. Let nme see what
ot hers may have. Any questions, M. Turnbull?

COW SSI ONER  TURNBULL: Yes, 1I'd like --
Commi ssi oner Mffatt, one of the things that the Applicant
menti oned was that on the Buzzard Point guide, and | know
they're not up to where they were originally, but over 15,000
square feet of retail is what they are asked to provide for
that site. And they're going to throw out 16,500 and
something. You'd still rather see the extra, even though
they're over the amount that's requested from the design
gui delines. They're actually neeting the design guidelines
in that sense.

MR, MOFFATT: Well, according to ny cal cul ations
they weren't. And | guess that | my have been wong.

Because | would put ny bets on your being able to figure it
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out better than I. But | didn't think that they had only
0.21 --

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Ckay.

MR, MOFFATT: -- FAR

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: | was just going by the
Appl i cant's subm ssion, Exhibit Nunber 11. On the | ast page,

they had nentioned that they're fully conpliant with the
vision for the sites that are set forth in the Buzzard Poi nt
gui de which recommends over 15,000 square feet of retail
space for this site.

So they're at 16,542 which, you know, they're
1,500 square feet over which is not anywhere near what they

ever said originally. But they are neeting the guidelines

in one sense, | nean, according to what the Applicant is
sayi ng.

MR, MOFFATT: Well, as | said, ny figures --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Your figures are
di fferent, okay.

MR, MOFFATT:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: Al right. Well, thank
you.

MR. MOFFATT: And | don't necessarily say mne
are absolutely correct. As | said, mne are not --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: No, | know. Al right,
t hank you.
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CHAI RVAN HOOD: So, M. d asgow, |let ne just ask

you. And M. Turnbull just brought it up, are you all
neeting the quidelines?

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: 1'll take this one.

CHAIRVAN HOOD: Oh, I'msorry. |'msorry.

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: That's okay.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ms. Bloonfield, | need to be
| ooki ng this way.

M5. BLOOMFI ELD: Yeah. So, let nmetry to explain.
Because you're referencing a 0.4 and you're referencing the
15, 000 square feet. And both are in the Buzzard Poi nt plan.

So the Buzzard Point plan, on Page 26, |'msorry
you don't have it in front of you, there's a chart here. And
it has the estinmated devel opment yield for the entire Buzzard
Poi nt nei ghborhood, a total nunber of units, a total nunber
of non-residential units. Those are | arge, | arge nunbers for
t he overall nei ghborhood that the plan is proposing.

In that chart, it says that for retail it assumnes
approxi mately 0.4 FAR dedicated to ground floor retail and
entertai nnent uses. That's generally for the nei ghborhood.

The plan, on Page 27, specifically tal ks about
1900 Half Street Project. And in that paragraph, it talks
about 414 apartnents, we're at 415 currently, wth over
15,000 square feet of retail space. So that's the nore

specific reference in the Buzzard Point plan to our project.
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The 0.4 -- and | haven't done the cal cul ation
Comm ssi oner Mffatt mght be correct -- in our opinion
al t hough we're not doing 0.4 FARretail, we are doi ng about
0.4 FAR dedicated to ground floor retail and entertai nnent

uses which parallels the actual |anguage in the zoning
regul ati ons which he also quoted, "Encourage a variety of
support and visitor-related uses such as retail, service,
entertai nnent."

And so, in our view, all of the very active
residential anenities uses on that ground floor are I|ike
retail. They're like entertainment uses, they're |ike al
of these other service, cultural uses that are going to draw
people to the site. It's going to be extrenely active. It's
going to activate the streetscape the way that the purpose
of the retail, you know, point of the regulations is.

So although we're not hitting exactly 0.4, we
bel i eve that the 15, 000 square feet, which is specific to our
site in the plan, since it's nore specific, it's the
appr oxi mate anount that we would go by. And we're actually
goi ng beyond t hat.

CHAI RMAN  HOOD: Ms. Bloonfield, here's what |
woul d request. | want those sections, | don't want the whol e
report, from the Buzzard Point plan, just those sections.
And | al so want a synopsis of what you just said for us to

review, and also if you could share that with the ANC
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And what | would like, I know you all voted on it
three tinmes, have you all already --

MR, MOFFATT: | would like to address what she
just said, sir.

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Sure, go ahead.

MR. MOFFATT: Because what she's reading i s what
was filed. And that's what they have filed. |It's not what
has been approved. You're here tonight | ooking at approval
for the --

(Off the record comments)

CHAlI RVAN  HOCD: But we don't have the Buzzard
Point plan. | don't want the whole plan.

MR, MOFFATT: "' m not saying the Buzzard Point
plan wasn't approved. |'"'m saying that what they are
proposing to build there, it was just -- they took cases or
proposal s -- and sonme of themhave al ready been approved, and
some of themhave not -- as exanpl es of what was pl anned for
Buzzard Point.

That was not in the -- there's a place in there

where she read fromthe 0.4 FAR, was what it was | ooking for.

There is --

CHAI RVAN HOCD: And that's kind of what | want ed.
It was, like, | wanted her to give ne a cheat sheet of where
she read the 0.4, and what she read, and then what was for

1900 Hal f Street. | wanted us to be able to digest that and
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| ook at that.

And | wanted her to share that sane rationale with
you. Because | wanted, if the ANC wouldn't m nd, | nean, you
have taken three votes, | wouldn't necessarily ask the board
vot e. But | would like for you all to opine on that
I nformation unless you already have. You follow what |I'm
saying? | don't want you all to --

(Si nmul t aneous speaki ng)

CHAI RVMAN HOOD: | don't want you to go back for
anot her vote. | guess you and M. Litsky or however you all
-- are you the vice chair?

MR, MOFFATT: No, |'m not now.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Wl |, maybe sonetine --

MR,  MOFFATT: |*ve done everything before but
not hi ng ri ght now.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So I'mnot trying to make it any
harder on the ANC. |'ve done community work for years, and
| know. And | still doit. Sol'mnot trying to go back for
anot her vote or anyt hing.

What | wanted you all to do is the sane one pager,
or hopefully it's a one pager that we're going to get, that
you all can ook at it as well. |Is that fair?

MR, MOFFATT: Well, | nmean, we have di scussed this
previously with them And what |'ve said to you i s just what

| told them that | don't believe that that is what it's
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telling, that it should be that way because it's sonething
that hasn't been deci ded al ready.

CHAI RVAN  HOCD: Well, here's the thing. |
under stand your point. Your point is, believe ne, |'mthere
with you. Wien you start relaxing stuff, this person, we
relax it here, we're going torelax it there, we're going to
relax it there. And we're going to end up with nothing. So
| understand that point. Believe ne, I'm wth you. I
under st and t hat.

But | want to understand a little nore on that,
t hat whol e synopsis, if that's where -- and you' re wel cone
to share it with the ANC if they want it. If not, then |
think -- unless ny colleagues disagree, at least | need it.
| don't knowif all of us -- | won't speak for my coll eagues
today. That'll be sonething that they can | ook at as well.

You |l ook like you want to say something. You' ve
been wanting to say sonething. D d you rehearse sonething?
You | ook |i ke you been wanting to talk all eveni ng.

(Laught er)

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  You been | ooking |ike you ready
to get it in. Ckay. So that's all | have. Any ot her
guestions, Vice Chair?

VICE CHAIR M LLER: Wl |, not to bel abor the point,
but just to further understand what's being discussed, M.

Bl oonfield, so you're saying that you're including, within
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the 0.4, the anenity, the tenant anenity space that's for
fitness. And you said retail, and entertainnent, and
service. So even though that won't be open to the public,
you're including that within the 0.4?

MS. BLOOWFI ELD: Well, | don't viewthe 0.4 as a
0.4 requirenent. It says, "Assunes approximtely 0.4," in
a chart that talks about Buzzard Point neighborhood
general ly.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  Ckay.

MS. BLOQOVFI ELD: The 15,000 square feet that is

specific to 1900 Half Street, that is all retail space it

r ef erences. And we have nore than 15,000 square feet of
actual retail space proposed. So in our view, we are
consistent with the plan. But we'll be happy to submt it

to the record.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  And give a calculation as to
what the 15,000 FAR, what that translates into in FAR, | ust
so we have that for the record.

M5. BLOOVFI ELD: Absol utely.

VICE CHAIR M LLER  And then | guess | woul d ask
O fice of Planning, the 0.4 FAR gui dance in the Buzzard Poi nt
guide of retail do you see as site-specific or as
nei ghbor hood-w de specific?

MS. VI TALE: Actually, 1 think Counsel for the

Applicant's summary was correct. That 0.4 nunber is for the
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Buzzard Point area as a whole, the area covered by this
vision framework. It certainly wasn't a m ni numrequirenent.
| do think that the 15,000 that's cited on the
project specific summary, and | think |I've probably printed
out the sane two sheets that you guys have printed out, |
think that 15,000 really is kind of the specific anmount of
retail square footage that's contenplated for this site.

Whereas the 0.4 -- when you |l ook at that table,
it's an estinmate of devel opnent vyield. So it was, if the
Buzzard Point area was to be fully built-out at the kind of
maxi mum possi bl e densities, you would have this many units,
this nmuch retail. So that was really a, you know, kind of
maxi mum expect ed assunption. And it wasn't a requirenent or
a mni mum

VICE CHAIR M LLER. Right. And fromwhat you know
about what's al ready been approved and what's i n the pipeline
for this area, and there's a lot that's comng, are you
confortable that it will, at that guidance for the 0.4, wl|l
be satisfied?

MS. VI TALE: | definitely think, wth the
anti ci pat ed devel opnent in Buzzard Point, there will be, you
know, a robust amount of retail. Again, | think we need to
be careful in how --

(Si nul t aneous speaki ng)

VICE CHAIR M LLER: The entire soccer stadium

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A wWwN

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

58

probably fits into that category, right?

MS. VI TALE: Sure. It contenplates retail and
entertai nnent uses. Again, | would caution tal ki ng about the
0.4 as a requirenent or an expectation. That was nerely if

you assune every site gets built out to the maxi num possi bl e
that this is what devel opnent would yield in the plan area

as a whol e.

VICE CHAIR M LLER. Okay, thank you very nuch

M5. VITALE: Sure.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: M. Turnbull, did you ask --

(No audi bl e response)

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. Al right. So we have to
del i berate on those two, we have to deal. The ANC i s not
satisfied. W' re going to have to deal with those two i ssues

t oday, okay. Al right. [I'msorry. 1Is it one or two?

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: It's only just one issue. |It's
just the retail.

CHAI RMAN HOQOD: Ch, what am | adding? | don't
want to put anything el se back on the table. D d we resolve

-- they had two issues in there.

MS. BLOOVFI ELD: They had four issues, and were
batting 75 --

(Si nul t aneous speaki ng)

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So let nme ask you, let nme ask --

VICECHAIR MLLER. Gving the flexibility to the
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Zoni ng Conm ssion, that was the other issue that --

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Onh, that's a scary issue. Ckay.
So really the main issue is the retail, correct?

MR, MOFFATT: Correct.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: And the ten percent you left to
us.

MR, MOFFATT:  Yes.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ckay. That's dangerous, but
anyway.

MR, MOFFATT: Well --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. All right.

COMM SSI ONER TURNBULL: The only other thing, |
nmean, it is a mnor thing, because M. MIlIlstein -- was the
reduction i n housing, whet her we're approving the flexibility
for ten percent or --

CHAI RMAN HOCOD:  Yeah, yes. That's what | just was
sayi ng. Ckay.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: So, | mean, we need to --

CHAI RMAN HOOD: W'l | deal with it, yeah, the ten
percent. Ckay. So | just wanted to --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: It's a minor --

CHAI RMAN HOCD:  Any nore issues on the table or
we're already there? ay. Al right, so | think we have
our marching orders, M. Mffatt. Does the Applicant have

any cross exam nation, M. Bloonfield?

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS
1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com




A WD

o O

~l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

60
M5. BLOOWFI ELD: No, thank you.

CHAl RVAN HOOD: Ckay. Thank you very nuch, M.
Mffatt. W appreciate all the work that you all do over in
6D. Ckay, let's go to any other reports that | my have
m ssed.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: We have NCPC.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ckay. M. Turnbull, could you

tell us what NCPC sai d?

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL: It's Exhibit Nunber 10.

CHAI RMVAN HOOD:  Sorry.

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Exhi bit Nunmber 10.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Yeah, | have it. | was just --

COW SSI ONER TURNBULL:  Cnh, okay.

CHAI RMAN HOQOD: Ckay. Well, NCPC, when can we
|l ook at it? They found a nodification to Jemal's Lazriv
Water, LLC, at 1900 Half Street. It's consistent with the
i ntent and requirenments of the Capitol Gateway design review.
And that, as M. Turnbull's already stated, that's all

Exhi bit Nunber 10 in the record.

Any other reports that | nmay have m ssed? kay.
Al right. Let's goto the organizations and persons who are
here in support who'd like to testify.

(No audi bl e response)

Any organi zations or persons who are here in

opposition who would like to testify?
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(No audi bl e response)

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Ckay, Ms. Bl oonfield, do you have
any rebuttal or closing? | don't know if we have any
rebuttal. We've rebutted everything |I think that could be
rebuttal. Do you have any closing? O, if you have sone
rebuttal, either one. | don't want to cut you off.

MS. BLOQOVFI ELD: Well, we were thinking that if
you're going to ask us to submt this one piece of additional
I nformation regarding reference to the Buzzard Point planin
an additional post-hearing subm ssion, we could submt our
closing and any rebuttal that we have in one subm ssion.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Okay. | think where we have two
i ssues that are outstanding, the ten percent and the retail
i ssue --

V5. BLOOVFI ELD: If | could speak to the ten

percent issue, because | don't think we really responded to

t hat .

Qur interest in goingten percent bel ow, which was
your concern, would actually occur -- if that were to occur,
it would result in nore larger units. And we're already
providing 106, | believe, units at two and three bedroons

which is a significant amount. And if we were to have the
ten percent fluctuation up or down it would allow us to have
either nore units or fewer units that are bigger. So that

was our thinking, for what it's worth.
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CHAI RMAN HOOD: So if you could just nenorialize

ny ot her comments --

M5. BLOOVFI ELD: Absol utely.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: -- so we won't forget. So | think
we just said do those, okay. And closing, we can do that as
well, i1if you want to. Al right. Anything else, M.
Bl oonfi el d?

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: No, that is it. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: Ckay. My other two coll eagues
wll be reading the record. So we are going to put this, M.
Bloonfield, M. MIlstein, for a vote at the end of January,
our second neeting in January, give themtine to -- you all
time to do the submi ssions. But |let nme get Ms. Hanousek to
work all that out. M. Hanousek?

M5. HANOUSEK: Yes, if you want this on the 29th,

then if they got the subm ssions to us by, | guess, the 16th,

and then the ANC would have a week to respond. | mean, |
don't know how long -- how long will it take you?

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: We can submit as quickly as we
need to. In fact, if there was roomon the earlier January
agenda, we coul d probably neet that.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: The eighth, is that a -- | don't
know what nmy two col | eagues -- | don't know, you know, as far
as reading the record. And | specifically had t hought about
this before we cane out. | didn't want to put the onus on
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them to force them to have to read the record that fast.

Because | don't know when they're com ng back fromvacati on.
And January the 8th is our next neeting. So we wanted to
all ow enough tinme. | don't know.

VICE CHAIR M LLER: 1t"s not a big record.

CHAI RVAN  HOCQD: It's not a big record, okay.
Well, the vice chair has said, let's see if we can nove t hat
to the eighth. Let nme go on record that | was being
considerate, but | want them both to read it. So they'l|
have to have it read by the eighth.

(OFf the record comments)

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ckay. The Vice Chair says it's
not a big record. Conm ssioner Shapiro, Conmm ssioner My,
| know you all are going to |look at this. So the Vice Chair
is thinking you are, Vice Chair Mller.

MS. BLOOWFI ELD:  Just one page.

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: So let's see if we can do the
ei ght h.

M5. HANOUSEK: GCkay. So let's see, to get it the
ei ghth, ANC, then up to the second, so would you be able to

get your subm ssion in, say, in about a week?

M5S. BLOOWFI ELD: Yeah, absolutely.

M5. HANOUSEK: GCkay. So let's say the 26th? And
then the ANC would have a week to respond. And you woul d

need to get your draft order in at |east two weeks before the
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ei ght h.

M5. BLOOWFI ELD:  What date is that?

M5. HANOUSEK: Two weeks before the eighth would
be the 25th, so say the 26th.

M5. BLOOMWFI ELD: Ckay. And is that a 3:00 p.m
deadl i ne?

M5. HANOUSEK:  Yeah.

M5. BLOOWFI ELD: Yes, okay.

M5. HANOUSEK: So that's the draft order and both
your response that woul d be due then.

MS. BLOOWFI ELD: Yes, thank you.

M5. HANOUSEK: Okay.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: So we're all on the sanme page?
M. Mffatt, you have sonet hi ng?

MR, MOFFATT: | have just one question about the
response fromthe ANC. Does this have to be fromthe ANC or
can it be fromnme? Because the ANC woul d not have had tinme
to --

CHAI RMAN HOCD: Right, | thought about that. |

woul d just like a response from maybe you and the Chairnman,

if you all could do that, not discounting you all have a vote
al ready on record. It's just about this one issue.

MR, MOFFATT: (kay.

CHAI RMAN HOCD: If you and the Chairman can get

t oget her on that.
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MR MOFFATT: And so that will be the 26th that

they are submtting that, correct?

CHAI RVAN HOOD: Yes. And we'l |l take yours as | ate
as -- even if it's the day of. But | do want to give the
Appl i cant sone tine.

MR MOFFATT: (kay.

CHAI RVAN  HOQD: W will take yours as late as
possi bl e, because | know ANC, you know, it's vacation tine,
| mean, now holiday tine. And | understand it, you know.
We don't want to put that undue pressure on you.

MR, MOFFATT: And, M. Chairman, it's only if they
wanted t o respond and say sonething different than they have
al ready said, what they've already said.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Right, | agree.

MR. MOFFATT: It's up to you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Because we know where you stand
now. | just wanted to see if anything changes fromwhat they
submt to us fromyou all.

MR, MOFFATT: Ckay, and that's good. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: (kay, great. Are we all on the
sanme page?

M5. HANOUSEK: So in that case, you have until the
eighth at 3 o' clock. Correct?

CHAI RMAN HOCD: Can they have it in -- what day

is the eighth? That's a Monday.
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M5. HANOUSEK: Monday.

CHAI RVAN  HOQOD: Can they have it in by the --

what's that Friday? So that way they can have a chance to

review it.

M5. HANOUSEK: So Conmi ssioner, Friday the fifth
by 3 o' clock?

MR, MOFFATT: Yes. And just for your information,
the ANCw Il be neeting on the eighth, so | will not be able

to attend here. But | don't think | need to for that anyway.

CHAI RVAN HOOD: What tine is your neeting on the
ei ght h?

MR. MOFFATT: Seven o' cl ock.

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ch, okay.

MR, MOFFATT: | probably don't need to be here.
| mean, unless you have questions for ne or anything. I
don't think you're going to want ne to testify again.

CHAI RMAN HOOD:  No, no, no. But | was just trying
to think how -- | wanted you to see what we're doing. You
can webcast live, and you can | ook, kind of, or don't go to

sl eep wat ching us, but you can --

(Laught er)

CHAI RVAN  HOOD: This is webcast |ive. | was
trying to see if | should nove -- well, | can't nove the
nmeeti ng up.

MR, MOFFATT: But that's fine. | just wanted you
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to know that | would not be able to be here if you needed ne
for anything. But if --

CHAI RVAN HOOD:  Ckay, okay.

MR MOFFATT: -- if the answer will be in witing,
that's enough. That's fine with ne too.

CHAI RVAN HOCD: Sounds good. Okay, we'll work it

out. W understand the ANC neeting. Gkay, so let's see if

we can stick with that schedule. |Is everybody on the sane
page? OCkay. All right. He been looking Iike he been --
maybe that's just how he -- he been |ooking |Iike he been
wanting to say sonething.

MR. M LLSTEI N: He'll get his day, just not
t oni ght .

CHAI RMAN HOOD: He'll get his day, just not --

MR, MLLSTEIN. He'll get his day, but just not
t oni ght .

CHAI RMAN HOOD: Ch, okay. Al right. So with
that, | want to thank everyone for their participation. |
hope everyone has a happy holiday, and this hearing is
adj our ned.

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled matter went of f the
record at 7:50 p.m)
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